
DEVELOPMENT BANK OF
FEDERATION OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

Financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2019 and

lndependent auditor's report

This is a translation from the original report written Bosnian language. ln order to ensure an accurate
translation of the original report, this translation has been prepared with the best of our knowledge and
care. However, the original version of the financial reports and the accompanying audit report in Bosnian
language takes precedence over this translation in all matters of interpretation of information, views or
opinions.



Gontent

Responsibilities of the Management and Supervisory Board for the preparation and

approval of the annual financial statements

I ndependent auditor's report

Statement of profit or loss

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of financial position

Statement of cash flows

Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the financial statements

Page

1

2-4

5

6

7

8

o

10-69

This is a translation from the original report written Bosnian language. ln order to ensure an accurate

translation of the original report, this translation has been prepared with the best of our knowledge and
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language takes precedence over this translation in all matters of interpretation of information, views or

opinions.



Responsibilities of the Management and Supervisory Board for the preparation and approval of the

annual financial statements

The Management Board of the Bank is required to prepare financral statements which give a true and fair

view of the financial position of the Bank and of the results of its operations and cash flows, in accordance

with applicable accounting standards and is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records to enable

the preparation of such financial statements at any time. lt has a general responsibility for taking such steps

as are reasonably available to it to safeguard the assets of the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities.

The Management Board is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies to conform with applicable

accounting standards and then apply them consistently, making judgements and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent and preparing financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate

to presume that the Bank will continue in business.

The Management Board is responsible for the submission to the Supervisory Board of its annual report on

the Bank together with the annual financial statements, following which the Supervisory Board is required to

approve the annual financial statements for submission to the General Assembly for adoption.

The financial statements set out on pages 5 to 69 were authorized by the Management Board on 09 April

2020 for issuing to the Supervisory Board and are signed below to signiflT this:

On behalf of the Management Board

dr.sc. Semir FejziC

Razvojna Bank FBiH

lgmanska 1

71000 Sarajevo

Bosna i Hercegovina

09 April 2020

RB FBiH
Sarajevo
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I ndependent Aud itor's report

Grant Thornton d.o.o. Banja Luka
Vase Pelagi6a 2/lV
78 000 Banja Luka

Republika Srpska

Bosna i Hercegovina

T +387 5'1 21 1 509; +387 51 211 294
F +387 51 211 501

E office@ba.gt.com
www.grantthornion.ba

To the owners of the Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and

Herzegovina (hereinafter: "the Bank"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,

the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, v,rhich include a summary of significant

accounting.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Bank as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditols Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in acmrdance with the lnternational Ethics

Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

oprnron.

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 18 to the accompanying financial statements, current accounts and customer deposits as at

31 December 2019, are stated in the amount of KM 132,519 thousand. This total amount also includes the funds

of the special fund of the Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina. Specifically, by a

Decision of the Government of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina on 3 March 2017, a special fund of the

Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina was established, and by the Agreement on a

dedicated deposit to the Development Bank Fund of 6 March 2017, between the Development Bank of the

Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina and the Government of Bosnia and Herzegovina , the way of depositing

Government funds and placing them has been defined. ln accordance v,rith Government Decisions, the Bank

transferred funds to beneficiaries from Government Decisions, and submitted monthly balances on the said deposit
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to the Federal Ministry of Finance. According to the records of the Bank as at 31 December 2019, the balance of

the deposit account was reported in the amount of KM 2, 148 thousand.

As disclosed in Note 20 to the accompanying financial statements, the total value of litigation pending against the

Bank as at 31 December 2019 are stated in the amount cf KM 3,449 thousand. The Bank has released a provision

for litigation in the amount of KM 34 thousand, because the Management of the Bank considers that the outcome

of the litigation cannot be estimated, that is, in the opinion of the Management, the obligation is neither current nor

measurable. ln line with the foregoing, the Bank did not make any provisions for litigation as at 31 December 2019.

Our opinion has not been modified in respect of these matters

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor, who

expressed an unmodified opinion with an emphasis of matter as of 31 December 2018 in his report dated 18 April

2019.

Responsibilities of the Management of the Bank for the Financial Statements
The Management Board is responsible.for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the Management

Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

basis of.

The Management of the Bank is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by Management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going

concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Nevena Milinkovi6,

Certified auditor

Grant Thornton d.o.o. Banja Luka

Banja Luka,'10

,lr^" A.
Aleksandar PhD
Managing Partner - Director
Grant Thornton d.o.o. Banja Luka

Nevena Milinkovid
Certified auditor
Grant Thornton d.o.o. Banja Luka



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

lnterest income

lnterest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income

Other operating income

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Administrative and other expenses

Operating expenses

Profit before impairment losses and provisions

lmpairment losses and provisions

Profit before tax

lncome tax

Net profit for the year

Notes

10

2019

6,808

(454)

2018

8,963

(282)
4

5

6,354 8,681

1,629

300

1,739

739

035

1,629

9,128 10,610

(6,0e7)

(454)
(1,477)

(5,733)

(426)

(1,681)

(8,028) (7,840)

1 ,100

(741)

2,770

(2.263)

359 507

2(e)

359

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

507



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of comprehensive income

forthe year ended 31 December2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

Notes 2019 2018

507359Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income forthe year

Total comprehensive income for the year 359 507

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

Notes
31 December

2019
31 December

2018

107,731

13,496

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank

Loans to and receivables from banks

Loans to and receivables from customers

Other assets

Property and equipment

lntangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current accounts and deposits from customers

Borrowings

Provisions

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Registered capital

Retained earnings

Regulatory reserves for credit losses

Totalequity

Total liabilities and equity

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

198,126

1 ,198

4,319

168

100,489

13,498

204,752

99

4,105

84

323,027 325,038

18

19

20

21

132,519

1,395

1 ,130

142,116

1,866

3,115

9,02918 711

153,755 156,126

163,615

5,657

163,615

(2,760)

8,057

169,272 168,912

323,027

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

325,038



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othennise stated)

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation

lmpairment losses and provisions, net

Net interest income

Changes in:
Net increase / (decrease) in obligatory reserve with the Central
Bank

Net (increase) / decrease in given loans and receivables

Net decrease / (increase) in other assets
Net increase / (decrease) in current accounts and deposits from
customers

Net (decrease) / increase in other liabilities

lnterest received

lnterest paid

Net cash used in / from operating activities

lnvesting activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Financial activities

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash used in financial activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Gash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(73) (155)

(471) (416)

(4711 (416)

(7,2421 17,934

107,731 89,797

100,489 107,731

2019

359

454

741

(6,354)

2018

507

426

2,262

(8,685)

(4,800)

(2)

(8,147)

1,087

(e,5e7)

9,075

(5,490)

123

(e,2e8)

(477)

25,333

(118)

(12,s84)

6,140

(454)

10,073

8,714

(282)

(6,698) 18,505

(73) (50)

(1 05)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

Registered
capital

163,615

Regulatory
reserves for

credit
losses

8,057

Retained
earnings

1,587

Total

2,786 176,045Balance as at 1 January 2018

Net profit for the year
Effect of IFRS 9 application
(Note 2)

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Rounding
Re-stated balance as at 01
January 2019
Profit allocation per decisions (for
2014 and 2016)

Profit allocation for 2018

Net profit for the year
Effect of IFRS I application
(allocation per decision)
Equity reserves (allocation per
decision)

Total comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 December 2019

507

(7,63e)

507

(7,63e)

163,615 8,057 1,587 (4,3461 168,912
1

163,615 8,057

(8,057)

'1,587

2,786

507

(4,346) 168,913

(2,786)

(507)

359 359

(7,639) 7,639

057

163,615 5,298 359 169,272

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

History and incorporation

The Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("the Bank") was established by the Law on

the Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("Official Gazette of Federation of Bosnia and

Herzegovina", no. 37108). The Bank is headquartered in lgmanska 1 , Sarajevo. The Bank is in 100% ownership

of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

ln compliance with the Law on the Development Bank and the Statute of the Bank, bodies of the Bank are: the

Assembly (consisting of the Government of FB|H), the Supervisory Board, the Management Board and the

Audit Board.

As of 31 December 2019, the Bank had branch offices in Mostar, Biha6, Zenica, Ora5je, Tuzla and Livno.

Principal activities of the Bank

The goals of the Bank are encouragement of economic development and overall social development and the

encouragement of sustainable growth on the territory of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, relating to the

financial and general social goals defined by the Law on the Development Bank.

Corporate loan and guarantee approvals are the key activities of the Bank either directly or through other banks,

in order to support the local economy, regional development and increase in employment. The Bank performs

credit operations in the name and on behalf of the Bank (from capital, collected deposits and borrowings), as

well as in the name and on behalf of the Federation of BiH, on which behalf it manages its domestic and foreign

funds aimed for development projects, as well as receives cash deposits and takes loans, as a function of

fi nancing development projects.

Management Bodies of the Bank

Supervisory Board, until l6 January 2020

Dr.sc. lgor Zivko

Dr.sc. BoZo Vukoja

Zvonko Landeka

Asim Omanii
Amir Avdi6, mr.oec.

Edin Bandi6

Supervisory Board, from 17 January 2020

Dr.sc. lgor Zivko

Dr.sc. BoZo Vukoja

Zvonko Landeka

Dr.sc. Adisa OmerbegoviC Arapovi6

Amir Avdi6, mr.oec.

Dr.sc. Mehmedalija HadZovi6

Almir ZuliC

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Acting Chairman

Acting Member

Acting Member

Acting Member

Acting Member

Acting Member

Acting Member

10



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

Management Board:
Dr.sc. Semir Fejzi6

Marijan Or5oliC, mr.oec.

Senija Bubi6

Dr.sc.Mersiha Slipidevi6

Dalibor Milinkovi6

Audit Board:

Term of the Audit Board expired on 4 December 2018

Acting President of the Management Board

Acting Vice President of the Management Board

Acting Executive Director for Operations Support

Acting Executive Director for Risk Management

Acting Executive Director for Projects and Development

11



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(Allamounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERALTNFORMATTON(CONTTNUED)

Assembly of the Bank

ln 2019, there were no meetings of the Assembly of the Bank.

At the meeting in January 2020, the Bank's Assembly confirmed the FBIH Development Bank's Financial

Statements for 2018 and the lndependent Auditor's Report, the lnternal Audit Report for 2018, and adopted the

Decision on determining the amount and profit allocation of the Bank for 2014, the Decision on the

determination of the Bank's profit allocation forthe period 2016, the Decision on the determination of the amount

and the profit allocation of the Bank for the period 2018. At the same meeting, the Assembly of the Bank also

adopted the Decision on determining and recording the effect of the first application of IFRS 9, the Decision on

the inclusion of formed reserves for credit losses in the core capital, the Decision on covering the loss - the

negative effect of applying IFRS 9 from the Bank's capital reserves, as well as the Decision on the adoption of

the Bank's business plan and program for 2019.

Superuisory Board

The Supervisory Board, as the controlling body, has an important role in overseeing the Bank's operations and

representing the interests of the owners, and, together with the members of the Management Board, is

responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with legal requirements.

According to the Law on the Development Bank of FB|H, the Supervisory Board of the Bank consists of the

Chairman and six members, which are appointed and dismissed by the Assembly. ln addition, the

aforementioned is defined by the Statute of the Development Bank of FB|H as well and by the adopted

Rulebook on Functioning of the Supervisory Board of the Development Bank of FBiH (February 2010).

Asof 31 December20l9,theSupervisoryBoardof theBankconsistsof sixoutof sevenmembersintotal

(including the Chairman) as defined by the mentioned Law, Statute as well as the adopted Rulebook.

Management Board of the Bank

Pursuant to the Law on the Development Bank of FB|H and the Statute of the Bank, the Management Board

comprises the President of the Management Board, Vice President of the Management Board and executive

directors, appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board.

According to the organizational scheme adopted in 2018, the Management Board of the Bank comprises of the

following: President, Vice President and functions of three executive directors - Executive Director for

Operations Support, Executive Director for Risk Management, and Executive Director for Projects and

Development.

Secretary of the Bank

The Bank has no Secretary of .the Bank since 23 September 2017,

12



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERALTNFORMATTON(CONTTNUED)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Accounting Standards ("lAS")

and lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS) issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards

Board.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Management Board on'13 February 2020 for

submission to the Supervisory Board.

a) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which means that the Bank will be

able to realize its receivables and settle its liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

b) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical or amortised cost basis.

c) Functionalandpresentationcurrency

The financial statements are presented in Convertible Marks ('KM"), which is the functional currency of the

Bank.

The Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("CBBIH" or "Central Bank") implemented a currency board

arrangement aligning KM to EUR at an exchange rate of 1: 1 .95583 throughout 2018 and 2019. This is expected

to continue in the foreseeable future.

d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires managementto make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which they are revised and potentially in future periods if they affect them.

lnformation on areas with significant uncertainty in the estimates and criticaljudgements in applying accounting

policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements are

disclosed in Note 3.

13



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange profits and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

b) Interest income and expense

lnterest income and expense are recognised in the income statement as they accrue using the effective interest

rate method. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows of financial assets or

liabilities over the life of financial instrument (or, if appropriate, a shorter period) to its net carrying value. ln the

calculation of effective interest rates, the Bank estimates future cash flovus considering all contractual terms,

but not future credit losses.

Calculation of the effective interest rate includes all paid or received transaction costs, fees and points, which

are an integralpart of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include allincrementalcosts incurred directly

in connection with the issuance or acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities.

lnterest income and expense recognised in the income statement include interest on financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest rate method.

c) Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral part of the effective interest rate on a financial

asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Fee and commission income and expenses, reported as such, mainly comprise of fees related to agency

activities, the issuance of guarantees and letters of credit and other services and are recognised in the income

statement upon performance of the relevant service.

d) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with the

lnternational Financial Reporting Standard 16 - Leases, which is applied from January 2019.

14



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

e) lncome tax

According to Article 32 of the Law on Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("Official

Gazette of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina", No. 37108), the Bank is not subject to corporate income tax.

0 Financial instruments

Recognition

Loans, both received and given, as well as receivables and other financial liabilities are recognized at the time

they are given or received (settlement date).

Glassification

The Bank classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: loans, receivables and other financial

liabilities. The classiflcation depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired. The

Management determines the classification of financialassets and liabilities upon initial recognition and reviews

that classification at each reporting date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not

quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables arise when the Bank extends cash to customers without the

intention to trade in those receivables, and includes investments and loans to banks, loans and receivables

from customers and assets with the Central Bank.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities comprise all financial liabilities and include current and deposit accounts and

borrowings.

lnitial and subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables, as well as other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. After initial

recognition, loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest rate method less any eventual impairment.

Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes financial assets (in full or in part) when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from

the financial instrument have expired or when it loses the control over the contractual rights of this financial

asset. This happens, when the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another

business entity or when the rights are realized, surrendered or expired.

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities only when the financial liability ceases to exist, i.e. when it is fulfilled,

cancelled or has expired. lf the terms of a financial liability change, the Bank will cease recognizing that liability

and will instantaneously recognize a new financial liability, with new terms and conditions.

15



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

2.

D

SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

ldentification and measurement of impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank reviews whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired. lmpairment of a financial asset or group of financial assets is recognized if there is

objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events after the initial recognition of the asset

(impairment event) and the event (or events) causing the impairment has an impact on the estimated future

cash flows from a financial asset or group of financial assets that can be measured reliably.

Objective evidence of impairment of a financial asset or group of financial assets includes significant financial

difficulties of the debtor, default or delay in payment of interest or principal" likelihood that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and when available data indicate on a measurable decrease in

estimated future cash flows from groups of financial assets since their initial recognition, although the decrease

cannot be identified for an individual financial asset within the group.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the Bank first reviews whether there is objective evidence of

impairment individually or collectively. lndividual financial assets with no recognized impairment are included

in the basis for impairment assessment on a group basis. For the purpose of group assessment of group

impairment, financial assets are grouped based on similar credit risk characteristics.

lf there is objective evidence of impairment, the impairment loss is determined as the difference between the

carrying amount of the asset and the present value of expected future cash flows (excluding expected future

credit losses that have not yet occurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of that financial asset

at the time of the impairment of the asset. The carrying amount of an asset is decreased through the impairment

provision account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

For individually significant loans, the impairment amount is determined based on the sustainability of the client's

business plan, its ability to improve performance in the event of financial difficulties, the existence of other

financial support, and the realizable value of the collateral as well as the time of expected cash inflow.

lmpairment is determined collectively for loans where there is no objective evidence of individual impairment.

To assess collective impairment, the Bank uses statistical models and historical data on the likelihood of

impairment events, the time it takes to recover and the total amount of loss incurred, adjusted in order for the

Management to assess whether the current economic and credit conditions are such that it is probable that

actual losses will be greater or less than those calculated on the basis of historical data. The Bank regularly

reviews loss rates and expected recovery rates at each reporting date in order to ensure accurate reporting.

lf the amount of an impairment loss decreases in the subsequent period and that decrease can be objectively

related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized (such as an improvement in the

borrower's creditworthiness), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance

account values. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

'16



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCIES (CONTTNUED)

ldentification and measurement of impairment of financial assets (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off and charged to the allowance account. Such loans are written off

after all necessary activities have been completed and the amount of the loss determined. Subsequent collected

written off amounts are recognized as reversals of impairment losses in the statement of profit and loss.

The Bank also accounts for provisions in accordance with the relevant regulations of the Banking Agency of

Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("Agency" or 'FBA"). Relevant investments are classified into

appropriate groups for the Agency's purposes in accordance with the above regulations depending on the dates

overdue, the financial position of the debtors and collateral instruments and are booked in accordance with the

required percentage of provisions. The general provisions in accordance with these regulations are also

calculated at the rate ol 2o/o on all exposures that are not specifically impaired.

Provisions calculated in the manner described in the previous paragraph ("FBA provisions") are not recognized

in these financial statements of the Bank. lf impairment for contingent losses calculated in accordance with the

Agency's regulations are higher than the impairment losses calculated in accordance with IFRS requirements,

the above difference is shown as a reconciliation when calculating capital adequacy.

Fair value measurement principle

Fair value is the price that would be obtained for the sale of assets or that would be paid for the transfer of a

liability in a regular transaction between market participants at the measurement date on the principal, or if that

is not possible, in the most favorable market to which the Bank has access on that date. The fair value of a

liability expresses its risk of default.

When possible, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument over the quoted price in an active market for

that instrument. A market is considered active if transactions for an asset or liability occur frequently enough

and to the extent sufficient to provide price information on a regular basis (Level 'l of the fair value hierarchy).

lf there are no quoted prices in an active market, the Bank uses assessment techniques that maximize the use

of relevant available input data (Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy) and minimize the use of

unavailable input data. The valuation technique chosen includes all factors that market participants would

consider when determining the transaction price.

The analysis of financial instruments measured after initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Levels

from 1 to 3 as follows:

o Level 1 -fair value indicators derived from quoted prices in active markets;

o Level 2 - fair value indicators derived from data other than quoted prices in Level 1 ;

o Level 3 - fair value indicators derived from valuation methods that are not based on observable

market data.

Specific financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, balances with the Central

Bank and current accounts with other banks.
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2. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CIES (CONTTNUED)

Specific financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents exclude the obligatory minimum reserve with the Central Bank as these funds are

not available for the Bank's dayto-day operations. The obligatory minimum reserve with the Central Bank is a

required reserve to be held by all commercial banks licensed in Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank

Obligatory reserve funds with the Central Bank are measured at amortized cost less impairment losses.

Given loans and receivables

Given loans and receivables from banks and customers are stated subsequently at amoftised cost less

impairment losses in order to reflect the estimated recoverable amounts.

Borrowings

lnterest-bearing borrowings are classified as other financial liabilities and are recognised initially at fair value,

less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent recognition is stated at amortised cost with any difference

between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and redemption value being recognised in the statement of profit

and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Current accounts and deposits from customers

Current accounts and deposits are classified as other liabilities and are initially measured at fair value plus

transaction costs and subsequently stated at their amortised cost using the effective interest method.

g) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost

includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent cost is included

in the net book value or is accounted for as separate assets only if it is probable that the future economic

benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day-

to-day repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on all property and equipment, except for land and assets in the course of construction,

on a straight-line basis at prescribed rates designed to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the

assets. The depreciation rates used by the Bank are as follows:

Buildings
Furniture and equipment:

- Furniture and other office equipment
- Mobile phones

Vehicles
Leasehold improvements

3o/o

2O%-33.33o/o
50%
20o/o

20o/o
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTING pOLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

g) Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are included

in the income statement as other income or operating expense.

h) lntangible assets

lntangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. The cost includes

all expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Amortization is provided on all intangible assets, except assets in the course of construction, on a straight-line

basis at prescribed rates designed to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The

following amortization rates are used:

Software 20%

The amortization method, useful lives and net values are reassessed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

reporting date.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date in order to

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable

amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit

and loss.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their value in use and fair value less cost to sell. ln

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment

loss had been recognised.

j) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

On behalf of its employees, the Bank pays pension and health insurance, which is calculated on the gross

salary paid, as well as tax on salaries which are calculated on the net salary paid. The Bank pays the above

contributions into the state pension and health funds according to statutory rates during the course of the year.

ln addition, meal allowances, transport allowances and vacation bonuses are paid in accordance with local

legislation. These expenses are recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the salary

expense is incurred.
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2. SAZETAKZNAcAJNTH RAcUNOVODSTVENTH poLrrKA (NASTAVAK)

j) Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits (continued)

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an expense in the income

statement as incurred.

Long-term employee benefits: retirement severance payments

According to the local legislation the Bank pays to its employees retirement severance benefits upon retirement

in an amount of six employee's salaries received in the last six months or six average salaries at the Federation

of BiH level in the last six months, depending on what is more favourable for the employee.

The obligation and costs of these benefits are determined by using a projected unit credit method. The projected

unit credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and

measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value

of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is similar to the estimated interest rate on government

bonds.

k) Provisions for liabilities and expenses

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beneflts will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made, or as required by law in the

case of provisions for unidentified impairment of off-balance-sheet credit risk exposures,

Provisions for liabilities and charges are maintained at the level that the Bank's management considers

sufficient for absorption of incurred losses. The management determines the sufficiency of provisions on the

basis of insight into specific items, current economic circumstances, risk characteristics of certain transaction

categories, as well as other relevant factors.

Provisions are released only for such expenditure in respect of which provisions are recognised at inception. lf

the outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligations is no longer probable, the provision is reversed.

l) Registered capital

Registered capital consists of one share of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.
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2.

r)

suMMARy OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTINUED)

Registered capital (continued)

Regulatory reserves for credit /osses generated from profit

From 2012, banks are required to calculate the requirement for regulatory reserves for credit losses taking into

account only instances where higher provisions would have resulted from the application of the Agency rules.

Retroactive application of this change in Agency rules is not required.

Based on the Decision on capital calculation for banks, adopted by the Agency in November 2017, replacing

the Decision on minimum standards for capital management and capital hedging adopted in February 20'13,

the surplus of regulatory reserves is not shown as the movement of reserves within the capital, but is solely

used when calculating capital adequacy. Therefore, the reserves shown in the financial statements as at and

for the year ended 31 December 2012 remained unchanged until 31 December 2018.

On 8 November 2018, the Agency issued a Decision on conditions for incorporation of generated reserves for

credit losses into regular core capital of a bank, according to which banks are allowed to make regulatory

reserves for credit losses generated from profits transferred to equity or retained earnings and reserves, subject

to the adoption of the Decision by the Bank's Management Board.

The Supervisory Board of the Bank has received a Proposal of the Decision on inclusion of formed reserves

for credit losses into the Bank's regular core capital for consideration and determination thereof, and submission

to the Assembly of the Bank for adoption.

At the meeting held on 16 January 2020,the Assembly of the Bank made the relevant decision, as well as the

decision to cover the negative effect arising from the application of IFRS-9 from the capital reserves in the

amount of KM 7,639 thousand.

By accounting business changes in accordance with the decisions taken, the Bank does not have regulatory

reserves for credit losses generated from profit in its accounts, but the Bank's capital reserves arising from prior

periods and after covering the negative effect of the first application of IFRS 9.

Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities

ln the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into credit-related commitments which are recorded in off-

balance-sheet accounts and primarily comprise of guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments.

Such financial commitments are recorded in the Bank's statement of financial position if and when they become

payable.

m) Funds managed for and on behalf of third parties

The Bank manages significant funds for and on behalf of the Government of the FB|H (Ministry of Finance,

Ministry of Development, Entrepreneurship and Craft, Ministry of Agriculture, Water Management and Forestry,

Ministry of Displaced Persons and Refugees, Ministry of Environment and Tourism and Ministry of Energy,

Mining and lndustry) and the Federal Employment Agency. lncome and expenses from such operations are

charged to the principal and the Bank does not bear any liabilities and risks. For these services, the Bank

charges fees. For details refer to Note 24.

n) Standards and interpretations effective in the current period

The following new amendments to existing standards issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board

(IASB) are effective for the current reporting period:

21



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

n)

SUMMARY OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2019);

Amendments to IFRS 11: "Joint Arrangements' resulting from the annual qualitative improvement

project - cycle 201 5 -2017 (remeasurement of previously held interests in the joint business) (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019);

IFRS 16 "Leases" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019);

Amendments to IAS 12 ,,lncome Taxes" - resulting from the annual qualitative improvement project -
cycle 2015 - 2017 (consequences of dividends on income taxes) - (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2019);

Amendments to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019);

Amendments to IAS 23 ,,Borrowing Costs" - resulting from the annual qualitative improvement project

- cycle 2015 - 2017 (capitalization of borrowing costs) - (effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019)',

Amendments to IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Amendments related to long-

term lnterests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 201 9);

IFRIC 23: ,, Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019).

o) Standards and interpretation in issue not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new standards, amendments to existing

standards and new interpretation were in issue, but not yet effective:

o Amendments to IFRS 3 ,,Business Combinations" - Business definition (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020);

. Amendments to IFRS 7 ,,Financial lnstruments: Disclosure", IFRS I ,, Financial lnstruments " and IAS

39 ,, Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement" - Amendments related to certain reliefs in

connection with the IBOR reform (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020);

. IFRS 17: ,,lnsurance Contracts" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021);

. Amendments to IAS 1 ,,Presentation of FinancialStatements" and IAS S,,Accounting Policies, Changes

in Accounting Estimates and Errors" - Amendments related to the Definition of Materiality (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020)

o Amendments to IFRS 9: ,,Financial lnstruments" and IFRS 7: ,, Financial lnstruments: Disclosure -
lnterest Rate Benchmark Reform" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022),

The Bank has elected not to adopt these standards, revisions and interpretations in advance of their effective

dates. The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and interpretations will have no

material impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the period of initial application.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLTCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments

ln accordance with the Decision on the lssuance and Application of lnternational Financial Reporting Standards

("Official Gazette of the Federation of BiH", no. 55117), application of the lnternational Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS) 9 - "Financial lnstruments" is obligatory in preparation of financial statements which refer to

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 requirements for impairment are based on the expected credit loss model and replace the current IAS

39 model of incurred losses.

The effects of applying IFRS I are charged to retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018 and amount

to KM 7,639 thousand.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Board of the Bank has adopted a Decision on amendments of the

lnternal Methodology for impairment of loans and other financial assets in accordance with IFRS 9 (no. 9184-

ll/1 9 of 1 9 November 2019), which defines the application of the credit conversion factor for off-balance sheet

items, and changes in the method of calculating impairment on exposures in the form of cash from other banks

in the country and abroad, including the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina. The effect of changing the

Methodology based on off-balance sheet items in the form of guarantees amounts to KM 1,040 thousand, and

from monetary assets KM 434 thousand.

Balance items subject to measurement are valued using the amortization cost method. Outstanding items that

are subject to measurement are: guarantees, letters of credit, unused amounts of revolving loans, unused

contracted credits. The so-called "Other assets" are also subject to classification, consisting of various

receivables from legal and natural persons that are not subject to credit-guarantee transactions.

lmpairment calculations for loans and other financial assets are carried out on a monthly basis.

Financialassets

Recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, at the moment of acquisition or approval.

Buslness models

All financial assets are grouped into business models that indicate the way of managing a group of financial

assets as a whole in order to achieve a certain business objective and define the way in which financial assets

are expected to generate cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTING POLtCIES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Business models (continued)

As of 1 January 2018, the Bank has implemented lnternational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9: Financial

lnstruments. Accordingly, the current period is also based on IFRS 9.

The effects of applying IFRS I are recognized in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018 and

amount to KM 7,639 thousand.

The Management of the Bank has chosen a business model that aims to hold assets solely for the purpose of

collecting contractual cash flows, which combines all the financial assets held for the purpose of charging the

contracted cash flows throughout the life of the financial instrument.

The business model for keeping assets for collection passes the SPPI tesi (Solely Payments of Principal and

lnterest, hereinafter the "SPPI test"), and the following financial assets are allocated to this model:

- cash and cash on bank transaction account,

- current account and obligatory reserve with the CBBH

- loans

- other receivables (other assets)

The underlying basic risk in this business model is credit risk.

SPP/fesf

The SPPI test is a test of contractual cash flows from the aspect of paying only principal and interest on the

outstanding principal amount, one of the criteria for classifying financial assets in a pafiicular category of

measurement. The SPPI test is conducted to determine whether the interest on the outstanding principal

reflects only the time value of money, or includes credit risk, other basic lending risks, lending costs and profit

margrns.

SPPltest is performed:

- for each financial asset, allocated to a business model whose purpose is to hold a financial asset for

the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows,

- for each financial asset in cases where the original asset is significantly modified and therefore

recognized as new asset

- when introducing new credit products to determine in advance the eligibility of the credit conditions

considered in relation to the need to subsequently monitor the value of any financial assets that would

arise from them.

C I as s if i cati o n of f i n a n c i al assefs

The Bank classifies its financial assets on the basis of allocation to the business model and the SPPI test as

assets subsequently measured at amortization cost if both conditions are met:

- financial assets are allocated to a business model whose purpose is to hold assets for the payment

of contractual cash flows and

- the SPPI test is satisfied - for financial assets, cash flows are defined which represent only the

payment of principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGN|FICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CIES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

C I a s s if i c ati o n of f i n a n c i a/ assefs ( c o nti n u ed)

The classification depends on the purpose for which the flnancial asset has been acquired. The Management

determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition and reviews this classification at each

reporting date.

Reclassification of financral assefs

ln case of change in the business model of financial asset management, a reclassification will be made of all

financial assets affected by the reclassification. Reclassification will take place prospectively, from the date of

the reclassification, i.e. from the first day of the next accounting period, whereby not modifying previously

recognized profit, loss or interest.

Impairment of financial assets

lmpairment of financial assets is recognized on the basis of the expected credit loss model for assets that are

subsequently measured at amortized cost.

lmpairment is carried out on a monthly basis, during the accounting periods and at the end of the year at the

balance sheet date, and the impairment effects are repofied on each placement individually in the statement

of financial position and statement of profit and loss.

IFRS I model of expected credit loss includes three stages, i.e. three levels of credit risk, whereby the financial

asset moves through stages as it changes its credit quality.

lmpairment is carried out using the lnternal Methodology for impairment of loans and other financial assets in

accordance with IFRS 9 (hereinafter "the Methodology").

On the date of first application of IFRS 9, the asset is allocated in three stages or three levels of credit risk:

- Stage 1 - financial assets without significant credit risk (the client is not in default status, it is overdue

by the IFRS counter less than or equal to 30 days and the FBA risk rating is less than or equal to B

5o/o)

- Stage 2 - The client is not in default status, it is overdue by the IFRS counter more than or equal to 31

days and less than or equal to 90 days, and the FBA risk classification is greater than B5%,

deteriorating the client's position

- Stage 3 - The client is in default status on any basis, it is overdue by the IFRS counter more than 90

days

Starting from default status as the sole criterion, the Bank distinguishes two different approaches to

impairment:

- individual and
_ group.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assefs (continued)

For financial instruments of customers allocated to Stage 1, impairment losses are calculated on a group basis

in the amount of 12-month expected credit losses.

Stage 2 - clients' financial instruments with significant increase of credit risk are allocated to this risk level.

For clients' financial instruments in Stage 2, impairment losses are calculated on a group basis in the amount

of lifetime expected credit losses.

Stage 3 - clients'financial instruments in default status - include clients with objective evidence of impairment

of the financial instrument.

For clients' financial instruments in Stage 3, impairment losses are calculated on an individual basis in the

amount of lifetime expected credit losses.

Exposure to the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina and other banks in the country and abroad is

multiplied by expertly determined PD of 0.1%.

As for other receivables (other assets) it is not practicable to estimate credit risk and expected credit losses,

the Bank has decided to apply a matrix to determine impairment, with fixed rates of impairment depending on

the number of days overdue or maturity overdue.

Details of the Methodology are listed in Note 25. Financial risk management, Note 25.1. Credit risk,

Modification of fi nancial assefs

Modification of a financial asset is any change in the contractual provisions that results in the conversion of

contracted cash flows. ln the event that the modification is not significant, the amendment to the contractual

provisions does not result in derecognition of the financial asset but a new gross carrying amount is determined

as the present value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate

(ErR).

ln this case, the difference between the original gross carrying amount before the modification and gross

carrying amount determined on the basis of modified cash flows after the change is recognized in profit or loss

as income or loss.

ln the event that the modification of a financial asset is significant, the financial asset is derecognised prior to

the modification and the modified financial asset is re-recognized as a "new" financial asset and a new EIR is

established. The date of initial recognition shall be deemed to be the date of modification of the contractual

provisions. lmpairment on re-recognized financial assets is recognized in the amount of expected credit losses

for lifetime credit losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financral assefs (POg assefs)

POCI assets are financial assets where, at initial recognition, there is objective evidence of individual

impairment for credit losses because credit risk is created or issued, or property purchased at a discount of at

least 5%.

For the purposes of calculating impairment, lifetime credit losses are recognized.

SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING ESTIMATIONS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions about uncertain events, including estimates and assumptions

about the future. Such accounting assumptions and estimates are regulady evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors such as the expected flow of future events that can be reasonably

assumed in existing circumstances, but nevertheless necessarily represent sources of estimation uncertainty.

The estimation of impairment losses in the Bank's credit risk portfolio represents the major source of estimation

uncertainty. This and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a significant risk of causing a

possible material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables and provrbrons for off-balance-sheet exposure

The Bank monitors the creditworthiness of its customers on an ongoing basis. The need for impairment of the

Bank's on and off-balance sheet exposure to credit risk is assessed on a monthly basis.

lmpairment losses are made mainly against the carrying value of loans to banks and customers (as disclosed

in Notes 13 and 14) and as provisions for liabilities and charges arising from off-balance exposure to customers,

mainly in the form of guarantees and letters of credit (as disclosed in Note 20).

The Bank estimates impairment losses in cases where it judges that the observable data indicates the likelihood

of a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the asset or portfolio of assets. Such evidence

includes delinquency in payments or other indications of financial difficulty of borrowers and adverse changes

in the economic conditions in which borrowers operate or in the value or enforceability of security, where these

changes can be correlated with defaults.

Summary of impairment allowances

lmpairment allowance for balance sheet
exposures, including cash and other assets

Provisions for off-balance sheet exposures

Note
31 December

2019

'000 KM

40,524

482

31 December
2018

'000 KM

39,010

2,337

41,347

11,12, 13,
14,15

20

41,006
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATIONS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNcERTATNTY (CONTTNUED)

Impairment /osses on loans and receivables and provisions for off-balance-sheet exposure (continued)

Regul atory requ ire me nts

The Agency is entitled to carry out regulatory inspections of the Bank's operations and to request changes to

the carrying values of assets and liabilities, in accordance with the underlying regulations.

ln addition to impairment allowances calculated and recognized in accordance with IFRS, the Bank also

calculates impairment losses in accordance with Agency regulations for capital adequacy calculation purposes.

The following table summarizes impairment allowances calculated in accordance with the Agency regulations.

Regulatory provisions as of 31 December 2019 are calculated in accordance with the new methodology (as

explained in Note 2 l).

summary of impairment arowances 
at oecemf;; 31 Decembet

Provisions for balance-sheet exposure (Agency)

Provi sions for off-ba I a nce-sheet exposu re (Agency)

lmpairment allowances under IFRS
Negative difference between provisions for balance-sheet exposure
(Agency) and impairment allowance in accordance with IFRS
Positive difference between provisions for balance-sheet exposure
(Agency) and impairment allowance in accordance with IFRS

Missing reserves

56,965

1,653

58,618

41,006

1,727

19,339

19,339

46,743

1,318

48,061

41,347

3,682

10,396

2,339

As presented in the above table, total Agency provisions exceeded provisions recognized under IFRS by KM

19,339 thousand as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: KM 10,396 thousand). Given that by the

Decision of the Assembly of the Bank and in accordance with the Decision of the Banking Agency on the

conditions for inclusion of generated reserves for credit losses in the Bank's core capital, earlier loan loss

reserves generated from profit in the amount of KM 8,057 thousand are allocated to the core capital, and cannot

be used as a calculation category in the calculation of missing reserves for credit losses, the total amount of

KM 19,339 thousand represents the missing reserves for credit losses in the business year 2019, and is shown

as a deductible item in the calculation of capital adequacy

Couft proceedings

The Bank performs individual assessment of all court cases and on that basis determines the amount of

provrsrons.

As stated in Note 20, the Bank has made a reversal of provisions of KM 34 thousand for court proceedings

because the contingent liability is neither current nor measurable.
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4. INTEREST INCOME

lnterest on loans to customers

5. INTEREST EXPENSE

lnterest on borrowings and deposits

6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee income from agency activities

Fee income from guarantees and letters of credit

Fees from other transactions

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

lncome from sale of acquired real estate

Donations

Other

8. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Net salaries

Taxes and contributions

Other

1,249

305

185

1,308

115

206

2019

6,808

2018

8,963

6,808 8,963

2019

454

2018

282

454 282

2019 2018

1,739 1,629

2019

918

11

106

2018

176

46

78

1,035 300

2019

2,652

1,998

1,447

2018

2,502

1,866

365

6,097 5,733

Personnel expenses include KM 1,107 thousand (2018: KM 1,034 thousand) of defined pension contributions

paid into the State pension fund. Contributions are calculated as percentage of the gross salary paid. The

average number of employees during the year of 2019 was 1 13 (2018: 1 17).
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

Memberships and charges

Maintenance

Supervisory Board and Audit Board remunerations

Energy

Telecommunications

Services

Bank fees

Materials

Advertising, entertainment, sponsorship

Rent
lnsurance

Other expenses

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS, NET

Loans to banks (Note 13)

Loans to clients (Note 14)

Provisions for employee benefits (Note 20)

lmpairment of cash and cash equivalents (Note 1 1 ,12)

lmpairment of acquired assets (Note 15)

lmpairment of other assets (Note 15)
Additional / (income from release of; impairment allowance for
contingent liabilities and court proceedings (Note 20)

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current accounts with the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Current accounts with other banks in foreign and domestic
currency

Cash in hand

Effect of IFRS I application (Note 2)
lmpairment of cash and cash equivalents
(Note 10)

2019 2018

256
230

143

132

122

97

100

94

89

11

21

182

223

205

186

131

125

101

100

97

68

50
16

379

1,477 1,681

2019
(80)

1,945

76

(434)

1,101

(12)

(1,855)

2018

605

2,256

238

83

(e10)

(e)

741 2,263

31 December
2019

92,440

31 December
2018

96,069

12,137

12

8,144
6

100,590 108,218

(404)

(83)(101)

Net cash and cash equivalents 100,489 107,731

Cash and bank accounts contain a cash amount for commission activities of KM 17,688 thousand (2018: KM

8,43'l thousand) (Note 24).
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12. OBLIGATORY RESERVE WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

Exchange rate adjustments

Other changes

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank of Bosnia and
Herzegovina 13,51 1 13,557

13,511 13,557

Effect of IFRS I application
lmpairment of the obligatory reserve with the Central Bank (Note
10)

(61)

(13)

Net obligatory reserve with the Gentral Bank 13,498 13,496

During the reporting period the Bank has maintained regularly the prescribed obligatory reserves with the

Central Bank (CBB|H), by applying a 10o/o rate on all deposits held by the Bank.

For the amount of the obligatory reserve and liquidity funds held with the CBB|H, no interest was accounted on

above mentioned amounts by the CBB|H in 2019.

Calculated impairment of the obligatory reserve with the CBB|H amounts to KM 13 thousand.

13. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES FROM BANKS
31 December

2019
31 December

2018

Loans to banks 1,408 1,488

Less: impairment allowance (1,408) (1,488)

Total net loans to banks

Loans and receivables from banks include interest receivable in the amount of KM 125 thousand (31 December

2018: KM 127 thousand).

Movement in gross exposure

Stage 1

Bank
Stage 2 Stage 3

1,488

Total

1,488

(80) (80)

1,408As at 31 December 2019 1,408
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13. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM BANKS (CONTTNUED)

Loans and receivables from banks (continued)

Movement in impairment allowance

Stage 1

Allowance for expected credit losses as at 31
December 2018

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

lmpairment allowances (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

Asat3l December2019

14. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES FROM CLIENTS

Shortterm loans (including current portion of long-term loans)

Corporate

Retail

Current portion of long-term loans

Long-term loans (excluding current portion)

Corporate

Retail

Less: impairment allowance

Bank

Stage 2 Stage 3

1,488

Total

1,488

(80) (80)

1,408 1,408

31 December
2019

2,640

36,282

31 December
2018

6,466

166

28 590

35.22238,922

201,443

1,683

194,758

4,503

203,126 199.261

242.048 234,483

(37,296) (36,357)

204,752 198.126
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLIENTS (CONTTNUED)

Loans and receivables include interest receivables, which comprise of unpaid due interest and fees, and

accrued interest in the amount of KM 773 thousand (31 December 2018: KM 783 thousand) and are presented

net of deferred fees in the amount of KM 854 thousand (31 December 2018: KM 854 thousand).

Changes in impairment allowance can be presented as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Effect of change in accounting policy - IFRS I
Net changes in impairment allowance (Note 10)

Write-offs

Balance at the end of the year

Analysis of gross amount of loans by industry

Corporate loans

Manufacturing

Real estate and rental business, etc.

Trade

Construction

Public administration and defence

Agriculture

Hospitality

Transportation, storage and communication

Other

Retailloans
Entrepreneurship

Housing loans

31 December
2019

36,357

1,945

(1,006)

31 December
2018

30,600

5,776

2,256

(2,275)

37,296 36,357

31 December
2019

58,572

35,951

33,290

8,995

74,477

11,495

1,179

1 ,103

14 612

239,674

31 December
2018

67,280

47,002

29,003

14,392

38,656

9,193

1,802

1,305

20,359

228,992

2,252

122

5,341

150

2,374 5,491

242,048 234,483

The weighted average nominal and effective interest rates as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018

were as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Corporate loans nominal i. r. effective i. r. nominal i. r. effective i. r.

Corporate

Retail

3.33%

3.70o/o

3.53o/o

3.990

3.63%

3.34%

3.890/o

3.60%
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

Gross exposure

31 December2019
Stagel Stage2 Stage3 POCI

lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

155,089

14,140

53,121 19,698 72,819

Total 155,089 14,140 53,121 19,698 242,048 234,483

Movement rn gross exposure

Stage I Stage 2

Bank

Stage 3

51,926

4,518

(e,615)

31 December
2018

Total Total

155,089

14,140

152,145

9,962

72,376

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December2018
New financing
Derecognized assets (excluding write-
offs)

Transfers to Stage '1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Transfers to POCI

Repaid assets

Write-offs

New financing

As at 31 December 2019

152,145

53,851

(16,046)

1,827

(2,351)

(10,640)

(23,6e7)

9,962

6,272

(1,242)

(1,827)

8,272

(4,847)

(2,450)

(5,e21)

15,487

(2,268)

(1,006)

POCt

20,450

(752)

Total

234,483

64,641

(26,e03)

(29,167)

(1,006)

155,089 14,140 53,121 19,698 242,048
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14. LOANS A.ND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

Movement in impairment allowance

Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Allowance for expected credit losses as
at31 December20l8
New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2019 3,601 1,862 26,083 5,750 37,296

3,844

1,69'r

(ss2)

661

(120)

(406)

(1,517)

(243)

1,425

1,116

(178)

(661)

1,097

(26e)

(668)

437

25,760

1,366

(2,727\

(e77)

675

2p92
1,329

(1,006)

5,328

422

422

36,357

4,173

(3,457)

1,229

1,945

(1,006)
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

a) Corporate - credit quality

Gross exposure

Stage I Stage 2

31 Decembet2019
Stage 3 POCI

31
December

2018

Total

112,313

9,823

84,136

Total

84,1 36

14,073

lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total

14,073

52,020 19,698 71,718 68,239

84,136 14,073 52,020 19,698 169,927 190,375

Movement in gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December2OlS
New financing
Derecognized assets (excluding write-
offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

Exchange rate differences

O Other changes

As at 31 December 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2

112,313

17,678

(13,622)

1,827

(2,308)

(10,640)

(21,112)

9,823

6,272

Bank

Stage 3

47,789

4,518

(6,622)

(5,88e)

15,387

(2,157)

(1,006)

POCI

20,450

(752)

Total

190,375

28,468

(21,486)

(26,424)

(1,006)

(1,242)

(1,827)

8,197

(4,747)

(2,403)

84,136 14,073 52,020 {9,698 169,927
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (GONTTNUED)

a) Gorporate - credit quality (continued)

Movement in impairment allowance
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Allowance for expected credit losses as
at 31 December 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

lmpairment

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2019 2,121 1,858 25,675 5,750 35,404

949

3,006 1,401

1,116

24,477

1,366

(1,858)

(e72)

653

3,015

2,204

(1,006)

5,328

422

422

34,212

3,431

1,308

2,198

(1,006)

(s0s)

661

(11e)

(406)

(1,465)

(885)

(178)

(661)

1,091

(247)

(664)

457

(2 541
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTINUED)

b) State and public sector - credit quality

Bank 31 December2019
Gross exposure Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3

lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk 69,747

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total 69,747

Total

69,747

31 December
2018

Total

38,617

69,747 38,617

Movement in gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at 31 December
2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

Other changes

Asat31 December2019

Movement in impairment allowance

Allowance for expected credit losses as at 31
December 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

Asat3l December2019

Bank

Stage 2 Stage 3Stage I

38,617

35,893

(2,385)

Total

38,617

35,893

(2,385)

(2,378)(2 378

69,747 69.747

Bank

Stage 2 Stage 3 TotalStage 1

774

719
(47)

774

719
(47)

(48)

624624

1,3981,398
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

c) Retail - credit quality

Bank
31 December2019
Stage 2 Stage 3

31
December

2018

TotalTotal

1,206

67

101 101

Gross exposure
lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total

Stage I

1,206

1,206

1,215

139

137

5,49167 1,101 2,374

Movement in gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December2018
New financing
Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets
Write-offs
Other changes

As at 3l December 2019

Movement in impairment allowance

Movement in impairment allowance

Allowance for expected credit losses as at 31
December 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

Stage 1

Bank

Stage 2

139

75
(1 00)
(47)

Stage 3 Total

1,215
280
(3e)

4,137
0

(2,9e3)

5,491
280

(3,032)

(43)

(207)

(32)

100
(111) (365)

1,206 67 1,101 2,374

Stage I

64

23

(4)

18

Bank

Stage 2 Stage 3

24 1,283

(86e)

Total

1,371

23

(86e)

6

(22)

(4)

(20)

(5)

22

(23)

(875)

(31)

(877)

494As at 31 December 2019 408
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15. OTHERASSETS

Acquired assets

Other assets

Total impairment of other assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

Effect of change in accounting policy - IFRS 9

lmpairment of acquired assets (Note 10)

lmpairment of other assets (Note 10)

Balance at the end of the year

1,603

202
(1,706)

1,615

200
(617)

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

Total other assets (net)

The impairment of other assets is mostly related to impairment of assets acquired for further sale.

Changes in impairment can be presented as follows:
31 December

2019

1,198

617

31 December
2018

1,531

5

(e10)

(e)

1,101

(12)

1,706 617

40
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16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Gost

As at 1 January 2018

Additions

Buildings Vehicles

Furniture Assets
and with usage

equipment right

7,483 195 1,650

50

(41\

Total

9,328

(41)Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Additions

Other adjustments

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2019

Accumu lated depreciation
As at 1 January 2018

Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2019

Net carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019

As at31 December2018

7,483 195 1,659 9,337

155
/12\

(57\ (12) (57)

7,483 195 1,674 9,423

3,151

224

110

29

1,448

97

u1\

4,709

350

u1\
3,375 139 1,504 5,018

224 88

/57\
28

(2\
369

(69)

3,599 168 1,535 16 5,318

3,884 27 139 55 4,105

4,108 155 4,319

41
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,17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
As at I January 2018

Additions

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Additions

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2019

Accumu lated depreciation
As at 1 January 2018

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2018

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2019

Net carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019

As at31 December 2018

Leaseholc
improvements Software

946

105

Total

952
105

1,051 1,051

1,051 1,051

807

76

807

76

883 883

967 967

168 168
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18 CURRENT ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
3l December

2019
Demand deposl'ts
Private enterprises

Cantonal and municipality governments

lndividuals and entrepreneurs

Public companies

Total demand deposifs

Purpose deposifs

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Government of Tuzla Canton

Public companies

Total purpose deposifs

Term deposits
In domestic currency
Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina (guarantee
deposit)

Federal Employment Agency

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Private enterprises

ln foreign currency

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - EUR

Total term deposifs

5,226

35,365

80

701

31 December
2018

3,756

33,244

442

256

41,372 37,698

2,277

5,360

210

18,359

5,961

25

7,847

59,928

12,541

10,000

600

24,345

57,952

11,368

10,000

522

83,069

231

79,842

231

83,300 80,073

Totaldeposits 132,519 142,116

Current accounts and customer deposits as at 31 December 2019, are stated in the amount of KM 132,519 thousand.

This total amount also includes the funds of the special fund of the Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia

and Herzegovina. Specifically, by a Decision of the Government of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina on 3

March 2017 , a special fund of the Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina was established,

and by the Agreement on a dedicated deposit to the Development Bank Fund of 6 March 2017, between the

Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina and the Government of Bosnia and Herzegovina ,

the way of depositing Government funds and placing them has been defined. ln accordance with Government

Decisions, the Bank transferred funds to beneficiaries from Government Decisions, and submitted monthly balances

on the said deposit to the Federal Ministry of Finance. According to the records of the Bank as at 31 December 2019,

the balance of the deposit account was reported in the amount of KM 2,148 thousand.

The Bank does not pay interest on demand deposits, purpose deposits and term deposits, except for one part

of a guarantee deposit from the Government of FB|H in the amount of KM 10,000 thousand (1o/o p.a.).
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19. BORROWINGS

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - Saudi
Fund loan for development, interest rale 2o/o p.a. with maturity date
31 August 2021
Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - Belgian
merchandise loan, interest free with maturity date 31 December
2027

31 December
2019

874

521

31 December
2018

1.281

585

1,395 1,866

ln accordance with the contract signed between the Bank and the Government of the FBiH, the Bank has

assumed obligation to redeem part of the borrowings as contracted between the Government and the creditors.

PROVISIONS
Retirement
severance Contingent Gourt

liabilities proceedingspayments Total

As at I January 2018

IFRS I application effect

lncrease (Note 10)

Decrease (Note 10)

Decrease due to payment

As at 31 December 2018

lncrease/(decrease) (Note 1 0)

Decrease (Note 10)

Decrease due to payment

697 339

259
(21)

(1e1)

1,393

605

1,393

864

(21)
(191)

744 2,337 3.115

110 (1,855)

(34)

As at 31 December 2019 648 482 - 1,130

As at 31 December 2019, the total value of claims initiated against the Bank amounted to KM 3,449 thousand.

Out of this amount, KM 2,295 thousand relate to labour disputes and KM 1,153 thousand relate to other claims

against the Bank

For part of the labour disputes, the Bank concluded extrajudicial settlements by which the employees waive

their claims, and the Bank undertakes to pay the employee's attorneys' fees incurred. Accordingly, for this

purpose the Bank formed provisions in the amount of KM 34 thousand.

Considering that the Bank has mostly settled its liabilities to employees on the above basis, and that the

remaining liabilities cannot be measured reliably, nor is it safe to estimate that the outcome of the remaining

disputes will mean an outflow of resources for the Bank, the provision has been released as of 31 December

2019.

Given the differing court practices in making decision on labour disputes, the Management of the Bank has not

been able to estimate the outcome of the outstanding proceedings, hence provisions have not been created,

except for those mentioned above,

(1,745)

(34)

(206)(2
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20. PROVTSTONS (CONTTNUED)

Management's estimate is that the Bank will not lose other proceedings against it.

Commitments and contingencies (Off balance sheet exposure) as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Performance guarantees

Undrawn lending commitments

Advance and payment guarantees

31 December
2019

18,325

7,131

674

31 December
2018

18,232

5,350

26,130 23,582
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21. OTHER LIABILITIES

Agency liabilities (Note 24)

Deferred income

Accrued expenses

Trade payables

Liabilities for interest on deposits

Other

22. REGISTERED CAPITAL

3l December
2019

17,688

668

63

64

38

190

31 December
2018

8,431

330

102

71

38

57

31 December2019
Receivables Liabilities

83,060

21,039

42e

18,711 9,029

31 December
2018

31 December2018
Receivables Liabilities

89,750

18,495

60,204 143

Yo
31 December

2019

Government of Federation of Bosnia and
Herzegovina 100 163,615 100 163,615

According to Article 3 of the Law on Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the

capital was supposed to be increased for the amount of KM 400 million from the budget of the Federation in

equal instalments in the period from 2008 lo 2011.

Up to 3'1 December 2019, the Government has not yet provided the capital injection according to the agreed

dynamic and amounts.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are entities which directly or indirectly, through on or more intermediaries, control the Bank or

are under the Bank's control.

The major part of transactions with related parties comprise of transactions with the Government of the FB|H,

the 100% owner of the Bank, and other companies and institutions that are in the Government of the FBiH's

major ownership (over 51%).

As of 31 December, balances resulting from related party transactions include:

KM'000

Government of
Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina

Public institutions
Companies in majority
ownership of the
Government of FBiH

Type of
relation

Owner

Common
owner

Common
owner 46,993

35

60,228 108,38847,028 104,528
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTONS (CONTINUED)

KM,OOO Type of 2019
relation lncome Expenses

Government of
Federation of Bosnia Owner
and Herzegovina 863 124

Common
owner

Common
owner

Gross salaries and other benefits

Supervisory Board members' remunerations

Other benefits

2018

lncome Expenses

927

382

110

Public institutions
Companies in majority
ownership of the
Government of FBiH

387

4,291 4,797 3,005

5,541 802 6,106 3,115

Remunerations of the Management and Superuisory Board

The remuneration of the members of the Management and Supervisory Board during the year ended 3'1

December 201 9:
2019
912

143

136

2018
667

150

46

1,191 863

24. FUNDS MANAGED FORAND ON BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES

The Bank manages significant funds for and on behalf of the Government of Federation of Bosnia and

Herzegovina (Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Development, Entrepreneurship and Craft, Ministry of Agriculture,

Water Management and Forestry, Ministry of Displaced Persons and Refugees, and Ministry of Environment

and Tourism) with the purpose of financing reconstruction projects and Federal Employment Agency projects

aimed at financing employment incentives and upkeep of employment. Those assets are held separately from

other Bank assets. The bank calculates and charges a fee for those services in accordance with a contract

signed with the provider of assets.

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

INVESTMENTS

Funds placed per project:

Water and gas supply 37,406 40,827

Manufacture and processing 40,692 41,469

Healthcare and education 33,073 38,320

Agriculture 36,248 36,355

Employment incentives 11,573 '11,658

Road construction and transport 1,124 1,583

Forestry 352 352

Micro finance -

Other 2,251 540

171,104Total placed per projects: 162,719
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24. FUNDS MANAGED FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES (CONTTNUED)

Receivables for accrued interest and fees

Total

31 December
2019

10,731

173.450

31 December
2018

9,400

180,504

SOURCES

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Federal Employment Agency

Other

167,672

11,573

42

167,191

11,658

51

Total sources:
Liabilities for accrued interest and fees

179,287

11 851

Total 191,138

Current liabilities from funds managed for and on behalf of
third parties (Notes 21) 17,688

The Bank does not bear the risk for these placements and charges a fee for its services.

178,900

10,035

188,935

8,431
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operating

risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.

The Management Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's risk

management framework.

Risk management is carried out by the Bank's departments in charge for individual risks under policies

suggested by the Management Board and approved by the Supervisory Board.

Risk steering and risk controlling processes are adjusted in a timely manner to reflect changes in the market

environment.

This note aims to provide information on Bank's exposure to all of the above stated risks, and its goals, policies

and procedures aimed to measure and manage the risks, as well as to manage capital of the Bank.

25.1 Gredit risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full

when due, which will result in the Bank's financial loss.

The credit risk is the most significant risk which the Bank faces in the course of its operations, and it is analyzed

and monitored on an individual loan and client basis, as well as in relation to the whole portfolio of the Bank.

To manage the level of credit risk, the Bank only deals with counterparties which are creditworthy and, if

possible, obtains sufficient collateral.

The choice of appropriate securities of the credit exposures depends on the assessment of the following:

Creditworthiness of the client

Risk of the financed project

Estimated value of collateral.

ln order to minimise credit risk, the Bank applies the Decision on definition, evaluation and treatment of

collateral for loan and potential placement security, and secures its credit exposures by taking one or more of

the following instruments:

- Cash;

Bank and corporate guarantees;

Bills of exchange and unconditional guarantees, issued by the responsible authorities as defined

in the Decision;

Moftgages over properties;

Pledge over business assets such as equipment, inventory and receivables.
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25. FtNANC|AL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (internal rating)

Each exposure that is measured at amortized cost and at fair value are allocated to one of the following

categories:

Gredit risk level Exposure Expected credit loss

12-month ECL

group assessment

Credit risk level 1

Performing

Low credit risk level exposures

Overdue less or equal to 30 days

FBA classification lower or equal to B 5%

Exposure in non-default status

Credit risk level 2

Underperforming

Medium credit risk level exposures

Overdue over 30 days and less or equal to 90 days

FBA classification greater than 85%

Significant increase of credit risk (increase of PD parameter;

deterioration of debtor's financial indicators; non-compliance

with contractual provisions; on special watch list for exposures)

Lifetime ECL

group assessment

High credit risk level exposures (non-performing)

Overdue over 90 days

lmpairment individually assessed.

Exposure in default status

Lifetime ECL

individual assessment

Credit risk level 3

Non-performing

Impairment and provisioning policies (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Beginning with 1 January 2018, in accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank applies an Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

model for all debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at fair value.

lmpairment losses for individual risk or portfolio risk are estimated for customers from all segments and for all

types of exposures.

The Bank performs segmentation by group of clients (corporate, retail, financial institutions), level of risk (credit

risk level 1,2 or 3) and risk assessment method (group or individual).

For exposures and customers classified in Credit level 1 (Performing) group risk assessment method is applied,

and '12-month expected credit losses (12-month ECL) are calculated.
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25. FtNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

C redit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (conti nued)

lmpairment and provisioning policies (applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

For exposures and customers classified in Credit risk level 2 (Underperforming) group risk assessment method

is applied, and lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) are calculated.

For exposures and customers classified in Credit risk level 3 (Non-performing) group risk assessment method

is applied, and lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) are calculated.

Definition of default and recovery sfafus

The default status is determined at client level and its total exposure to both legal entities and population.

Default status is identified if any of the following conditions are met: the client is overdue for more than 90 days

in a material amount; for reprogrammed / restructured loans at the moment of recognition; when it is estimated

that it is unlikely that the client (debtor) will fully comply with his obligations, regardless of the possibility of

settlement from collateral; when the liquidation or bankruptcy of the client was initiated.

A three-month recovery period was established for the client's recovery. Exception are rescheduled /
restructured loans for which a six-month recovery period was established, that is, if the grace period is agreed,

six months after the expiration of the grace period.

PD assessmenfprocess

PD represents the likelihood that an exposure will be in default status in the next 12 months or for the duration

of the obligation.

For PD modelling, approach is based on TTC (Throughthe-Cycle) migration matrices for exposures in

homogeneous client groups.

For these exposures, risky homogeneous groups are defined on the basis of days overdue and status of

reprogrammed / restructured exposures. Data modelling for the previous five-year period is used in PD

modelling, and the movement of exposures overdue longer than 90 days in material amounts and

reprogrammed / restructured exposures is analysed.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level 2, i.e. exposures where there has been a significant increase in

credit risk from initial recognition, but which still have regular operations, IFRS I requires the PD parameter to

be calculated for the entire life of the instrument.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level '1, a portion of the PD parameter is used for 12 months, based on

12 migration matrices for each homogeneous group.

Starting from the PD value at 12-month level to migration matrices, the cumulative and conditional probabilities

of the PD parameter for the maturity of up to 5 years are calculated, which are used to calculate the marginal

values of the PD parameter. The marginal value of the lifetime PD parameter is shifted to the macroeconomic

value of expected future losses taking into account the movements of GDP. The value of lifetime PD depends

on the remaining period untilthe maturity of the individual exposure.
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25. FtNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED'

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (internal rating) (continued)

Exposure at default (EAD)

Exposure at Default (EAD) is calculated as the total amount of credit exposure (on-balance and off-balance

sheet), including the interest that is expected to be collected up to the end of the loan term, for which impairment

allowances for credit losses are to be created and is calculated at the client level.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level 1 and matured exposures, EAD is equal to current exposure.

For undue exposures, lifetime EAD is calculated on the basis of the repayment plan, taking into account

amounts and maturity periods, up to the maximum exposure maturity date.

Loss griven default (LGD)

Loss given default (LGD) is estimated for all exposures according to homogeneous groups on the basis of

transactions after the date of default and is expressed as a percentage. Each exposure is discounted at the

date of default at the appropriate discount rate.

The estimate and calculation of the LGD parameter is based on the effective value of collateral that falls under

each individual contract and based on the Cure Rate (CR) at the 12-month level and/or the lifetime of the

instrument, depending on whether the level of credit risk is 1 or 2.

Grouping financial assets measured on a group basis

For the purpose of determining a significant increase in credit risk and recognition of group-based allowances,

on the basis of common credit risk characteristics, homogeneous groups were formed by the type of client:

legal entities

population

- financialinstitutions

By applying the lnternal lmpairment Methodology, exposures to each of these homogeneous groups are

classified according to the level of credit risk.

Credit risk is assessed at group level for all clients and exposures classified in credit risk levels 1 and 2.

For exposures classified in credit risk level 1, the expected credit loss is measured as a 12-month ECL.

For exposures classified into risk level 2 expected losses are measured as lifetime expected losses.

Grouping financialassets measured on an individual basis

For all exposures that are not classified in credit risk levels 1 and2, the impairment loss, i.e. the expected credit

loss, is accounted for on an individual basis for the entire lifetime of exposure at the client level and the

associated individual exposures.



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

25. FTNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONT|NUEDI

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (contin ued)

Grouping financial assefs measured on an individual basrs (continued)

All customer exposures that have entered the default status are assessed on an individual basis.

ln an individual basis assessment, the Bank performs a separate analysis of the expected cash flows, i.e. the

expected credit loss (ECL) represents a probability weighted credit loss estimate based on three potential

scenarios, weighted by the likelihood of the occurrence of each scenario and their discounting to the present

value of the impairment loss.

The Bank uses three (3) most probable cash flow assessment scenarios whose aggregate probability must be

=1.

The individual basis implies an analysis of the expected future cash flows by observable placement and the

calculation of their present value.

Methodology for POCI

POCI assets include loans / agreements for which at the time of initial recognition under IFRS 9 it is determined

that their value is decreased for credit losses at the individual level due to the existence of significant credit

risk.

The Bank classifies as a POCI asset loans/agreements which meets any of the following criteria:

- that in the 12 months prior to the first application of IFRS 9, significant modifications of contractual

obligations were made, i.e. a loan rescheduling in order to overcome the client's financial difficulties

(e.9. extending the repayment period, subsequently introducing a grace period, etc., and assessing

that the servicing of liabilities it can be difficult even after reprogramming);

- that they are reprogrammed credit agreements which have not been recovered within the period

defined for POCI assets, or that have delays greater than 90 days in a materially significant amount

during the recovery period for POCI assets;

- new placements to clients who have placements with individual impairment in the portfolio (classified

in Stage 3)

- items of assets purchased with economic loss (discount) of more than 5% of the net book value of the

asset.

lmproved Credit Risk of POC|Assefs (Returning to Stage 2)

Items of POCI assets can be returned to Stage 2 (due to credit recovery or credit risk improvement).

For the transfer of POCI assets in Stage 2, a twelve-month period of recovery was established. POCI asset

(loan) remain classified as POCI at least 12 months from the moment of classification, i.e. if a grace period was

contracted for POCI asset (loan) at the moment of recognition, at least'12 months after the expiration of the

grace period. Only after this recovery period, POCI assets (loans) can be classified in Stage 2 if not in the

default status on another basis.

POCI assets (loans) can never be classified in Stage 1

ln the event that after the recovery and transition to Stage 2 there is a re-emergence of default status, exposure

is classified in Stage 3.
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25. FtNANC|AL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (contin ued)

Methodology for POd (continued)

Accounting model of POCI asset treatment

POCI assets are measured at amortized cost.

Significant lncrease of Credit Rrbk - S/CR

For the purpose of continuously determining increased credit risk, the risk changes for all the Bank's clients are

monitored at least annually. According to the Methodology, all placements to a client for which an increased

credit risk is determined for the next reporting date are classified in Stage 2 according to any of the following

criteria:

- customer's delay in paying any significant overdue liabilities longer than 31 days by the IFRS counter,

and shorter than 90 days

- the client is in financial difficulties but is not in the default status

- FBA classification is greater than B 5%

ln addition, the criteria for assigning a client to Stage 2 may be as follows:

- non-compliance with contractual provisions

- loss of key customers or suppliers

- and similar.

Exit from the status of increased credit risk is due to the lack of any criteria that have been classified by the

client in the relevant status for its occurrence, and the verification of all indicators is carried out at least once a

year, within the annual client monitoring.
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25. FtNANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1. Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account any collateral or other increased

value

Maximum credit
exposure

Contingent
Net liabilities /

exposure guarantees

100,489
13,498

204,752

Fair value
of

Total collateral

31 December2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables from clients

31 December2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables from clients

26,130

100,489
13,498

230.882 240.624

318,739 26,130 344,869 240,624

107,731
13,496

'1 98,1 26

- 107,731 -

- 13,496
23,582 221,708 232,812

319,353 23,582 342,935 232,812

For statement of financial position items, the above exposures are based on net carrying amounts as shown in

the statement of financial position. The table above represents the maximum credit risk exposure as at 31

December 2019 and 31 December 2018, without taking account of any collateral or other increase in value.

Estimated value of property that serves as collateral is determined by the value of the initial evaluation by

independent evaluators / real estate agents at the time of loan approval, reduced by a fixed percentage,

depending on the type of collateral and reduced proportionately to the extent that it also serves as collateral

security for other credit exposure. ln order to verify the adequacy of the impairment, the re-valuation of collateral

is done in accordance with the principles and rules of the collateral management system, taking into

consideration the volatility of the value of the collateral and the time required for its implementation, under the

influence of local and global market conditions. Guarantees and promissory notes do not have the declared

value in the table, although they are usually required as collateral.

During the year, the Bank, in positions of non-financial assets, has items acquired by taking possession of

collateral that are used as collateral in credit exposure in the case of non-repayment of the debt by the debtor.

This process of acquiring is mainly related to real estate, equipment, vehicles. The acquired assets are shown

as such in the statement of financial position of the Bank at the time when the conditions are met for tts

acquisition in accordance with IFRS and local regulations. The Bank's policy is to sell the assets acquired in

this way, and during the time of ownership of these assets until they are sold to third parties, the assets can be

temporarily used for the operations of the Bank or to rent to third parties. The acquired assets are presented in

Note 15.



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

25. FTNANCTAL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

Restructured loans

During the year, the Bank carried out the restructuring of certain loans to customers, with the aim of achieving

better recoverability. Restructuring is usually done after the initial deterioration of the financial situation of the

client or for the purpose of preventing fudher deterioration. Wherever possible, the Bank's position improves

by acquisition of additional collateral.
31 December 31 December

2019 2018.

Gross restructured loans

Less: impairment allowance

38,977

(13,197)
37,393

(13,08e)

25,780 24,304

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment

Glassification of loans by credit risk level

For the purpose of credit monitoring and credit risk management, the Bank's credit portfolio is divided into the

following groups:

- Loans with low credit risk (performing loans)- loans not impaired for 12-month expected losses, on

group level;

- Loans with medium risk level (performing loans) - loans impaired for lifetime credit losses, on group

level;

- Loans with high credit risk level (non-performing loans) - loans impaired for lifetime expected losses,

on individual level, including POCI assets.

Analysis of the credit portfolio in accordance with the aforementioned categories is as follows:
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25. FtNANCtAL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Credit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Glassification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

31 December

2019

Banks

Loans with high risk level

Gross exposure

Less: impairment allowance

1,408

Net exposure

31 December

2018

1,488

1,409

(1,408)

1,499

(1,488)

Gorporate

Loans with low risk level (performing loans)

Loans with medium risk level (performing loans)

Loans with low risk level (non-performing loans)

Gross exposure

Less: impairment allowance

Net exposure

Gross exposure - POCI

Less: lmpairment allowance

Net exposure

Retail

Loans with low risk level (performing loans)

Loans with medium risk level (performing loans)

Loans with low risk level (non-performing loans)

Gross exposure

Less: impairment allowance

Net exposure

Total gross exposure

Portfolio impairment allowance (12-month ECL)

Portfolio impairment allowance (lifetime ECL)

lndividual impairment allowances

Net exposure

153,883

14,073

52,020

150,930

9,823

47 789

208,542

(29,658)

219,976

(31,052)

188,924 178,884

19,698 20,450

(5,750) (5,328)

202.872 194,006

1,206

67

101

1,215

139

137

5,491

(1,371)

2,374

u94\

1,880 4,120

243,456 235,971

(3,601)

(1,862)

(33,241\

(3,844)

(1,425)

(32,576)

198,126204,752
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25. FINANC|AL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Glassification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

a) Loans with low credit risk level

The quality of the portfolio of loans to customers that have a low risk level and are impaired on portfolio level

for 12-month ECL can be assessed through the internal standard monitoring system. Loans to customers are

regularly monitored and systematically reviewed in order to identify any irregularities or warning signs. These

loans are subject to constant monitoring with the aim of taking timely action based on improvement/deterioration

of client risk profile.

An overview of gross exposure of loans with low risk level according to the type of loan user is as follows

Banks Corporate Retail Total

31 December2019
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 150,364 '1,124 151,488

153,883
(3,519)

1,206
(82\

155,089
(3.601)

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

31 December2018
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

2%

64%

Banks Gorporate

150,930
(3,780)

7%

51%

Retail

1,215
(64)

2%

64%

Total

152,145
(3.844)

'147,150 1,151 148,301

6o/o5%3%

72% 22% 68%
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25. FtNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Glassification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

b) Loans with medium credit risk level

For loans to and receivables from customers between 31 and 90 days overdue, i.e. loans with medium risk

level, gross exposure is impaired on portfolio level for lifetime ECL. The gross amount of loans to and

receivables from customers with medium credit risk was as follows:

Banks Gorporate Retail Total

31 December 2019

Gross exposure (due unimpaired loans)

lmpairment

Net

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in totalloans

31 December2018
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

14,073

(1,858)

67 14,140

(4) (1,862L

12,215 12,278

13%

6%

Banks Corporate

9,823

(1,401\

Retail

139

Q4\

13%

6%

Total

9,962
(.4251

6%

3%

8,422 '115 8.537

c) Loans with high credit risk level

The breakdown of the gross and net amount of the loans to customers that are impaired for lifetime ECL on

individual level, along with the estimated value of related collateral held by the Bank as security (presented up

to the maximum amount of the related exposure), are as follows:

Banks Gorporate Retail POCI Total

31 December2019
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 26,345 693 13,948 40,986

1,408
(1,408)

52,020
(25,675)

1,101
(408)

14%

5%

17%

3%

19,698
(5,750)

14%

4%

74,227
(33,241)

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

100%

100%

49%

24%

37%

46%

29%

100%

45%

30%
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25. FtNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTIN)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Glassification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

c) Loans with high credit risk level (continued)

Banks Corporate Retail POCI
Estimated value of collateral
as at 31 December 2019

Deposits

Mortgages 124,892 3,710 42.647 171.249

Total 124,892 3,710 42,647 171,249

Banks Gorporate Retail POCt Total

31 December 2018

Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 23,312 2,854 15,122 41,288

Total

1,488
(1,488)

47,789
(24,477)

4,137 20,450 73,864
(1,283) (5,328) (32,5261

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

100%

100o/o

51%

2s%

31o/o

75o/o

26%

100%

44%

31%

Banks Gorporate Retail POCt Total
Estimated value of collateral
as at 31 December 2018

Deposits

Modgages 144,845 19,584 49.376 213,805

Total 144.845 19,584 49.376 213.805

25.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises in the funding of the Bank's activities and in the management of positions. Treating liquidity

risk, the Bank consolidates its operations in accordance with the relevant decisions and internal policies aimed

at maintenance of liquidity reserves, harmonization of assets and liabilities indicators and liquidity limits.

The Bank has limited access to sources of finance. Funds are raised through a limited number of instruments

including deposits of FBiH Government and the Federal Employment Service, deposits of legal entities,

borrowings and equity. This limits the flexibility of financing and represents a reliance on deposits and payments

of capital by the Government of the Federation.

The Bank strives to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of liabilities

with different maturities. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monitoring changes in

funding required to meet business goals. Furthermore, the Bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its

liquidity risk management strategy.
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25. FTNANCtAL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows the remaining contractual maturity of the Bank's assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2019

Assets

Uptol 1to3 3monthsto 1to5 OverS
month months 1 year years years

Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the
CentralBank
Loans and receivables from
clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and
intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits
from customers

Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Other liabilities
Registered capital and
reserves

Total liabilities and equity

Liquidity gap

100,489

13,498

18,773

99

Total

100,489

13,498

204,752

99

4,199

5,065 34,248 100,780 45,886

4,189

132,859 5,065 34,248 100,780 50,075 323,027

49,219 31,420 51,880 132,519

697 I 96 1,395218

252

18,050

4

3

284

276

110

203 395 1,130

256 292 18,711

- 169,272 169,272

67,521 225 670 32,576 222,035 323,027

65,338 4,840 33,578 68,204 (171,960)

6'1



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

25.

25.2

31 December2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the
Central Bank
Loans and receivables from
clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and
intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits
from customers

Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Other liabilities
Registered capital and
reserves

FtNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Uptol
month

107,731

13,496

11,653

85

1 to 3 3 months to I
months year

6,354

1to5
years

30,933 114,703

1,113

Over 5
years Total

107,731

13,496

198,126

1 ,198

4,487

34,483

4,487

132,965 6,354 32,046 114,703 38,970 325,038

62,043

213

534

8,706

279

165

97

31,442 48,631 142,116

1,114 260 1,866

2,043 373 3,115

133 93 9,029

- 168,912 168,912

Total liabilities and equity

Liquidity gap

71,283 213 541 34,732 218,269 325,038

61,682 6,141 31,505 79,971 (179,2991

25.3 Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest

rate, foreign currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements

and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign

exchange rates and equity prices.

The Management Board sets limits and guidelines for monitoring and mitigating of market risks, which is

regularly monitored.

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Exposure to currency risk arises from credit, deposit-taking and trading activities and is controlled on a daily

basis in accordance with legal and internal limits for each currency, as well as in total amounts for assets and

liabilities denominated in or linked to foreign currencie

Treasury department is responsible for daily management of the Bank's currency position in accordance with

legal and internal regulations.

ln order to manage foreign exchange rate risk more efficiently, the Bank monitors economic and other business

changes in the environment in order to predict possible changes in foreign currency activities, exchange rates,

currencies and risk.
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25. FtNANCtAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarizes the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December

2019 and 31 December 2018. The tables include the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts

categorized by currency.

31 December2019 Other
USD currenciesKM EUR Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank

Loans and receivables from clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and intangible

7,203

assets

Total assets

4,189 4,189

314,873 7,204 950 323,027

92,354

13,498

204,734

98 I

932

18

'100,489

13,498

204,752

99

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits from
customers

Borrowings

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

Total liabilities and equity

Net foreign exchange position (6,311) 6,446 (135)

132,075

1,'130

18,707

169,272

233

521

211

874

132,5',19

1,395

1,130

18,711

169,272

4

321,184 758 1.085 323,027

63
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25. FINANCIAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)

31 December2OlS
KM EUR

Other
USD currencies

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank

Loans and receivables from clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and intangible
assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits from
customers

Borrowings

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

10,936 '1 ,139

18

95,656

13,496
'1 98,108

1,197

4,487

1

Total

107,731

13,496

198,126

1,198

4,487

312,944 10,937 1,',157 325,038

141,499 568

3,1 15

9,028

168,912

585

49

1,281

142,',l16

1,866

3,115

9,029

168,912

1

Total liabilities and equity 322.554 1,154 1,330 325,038

Net foreign exchange position (9,610) 9,783 (1731

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Bank is mainly exposed to EUR and USD. Since Convertible Mark (BAM) is pegged to EUR, the Bank is

not exposed to risk of change in the exchange rate of EUR.

The following table shows the Bank's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in BAM against the USD. 10%

is the sensitivity rate used for reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and

represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates. The

analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and represent an adjustment

to their value at period end for an USD exchange rate movement of 10%. The sensitivity analysis includes

external loans that are denominated in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A

positive numberbelowindicates an increase in profitwhen BAM strengthens by 10% againstthe USD. Fora

10% weakening of the BAM against the USD, there would be an equal but opposite impact on the profit.
USD effect

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

(14) (17)Loss
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25. FtNANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.2. lnterest rate risk

The bank is subject to the risk of interest rate changes, the extent to which interest-bearing assets and liabilities

mature or change rates at different times or in different amounts.

The majority of loans to legal entities and individuals are initially contracted at fixed interest rates. These

financial instruments are classified as instruments with fixed interest rates, and other such instruments with

variable interest rates. The Bank does not pay interest on deposits, except for part of the guarantee deposit of
the Government of FBiH KM 10,000 thousand (1o/o per annum). Decision on establishing and changes in

interest rates are made by the Supervisory Board at the proposal of the Board.

lnterest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities

The table below summarizes the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk at the end of the year. Assets and

liabilities are presented in the table at book value and are categorized by the earlier contractual maturity date.

Those assets and liabilities that are not applicable interest rates are classified as "Non-interest bearing".

As at
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Obligatory reserve with
the Central Bank
Loans and receivables
from clients
Other assets
Property, equipment
and intangible assets

Non-interest
bearing

,hii",, 1-.3 3months

month monrns ro 1 year Total

100,499

13,499

5,065 34,248_ 100,780 45,886 204,752 204,537_ 3.33%

4,189

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Fixed
interest

rate

Effective
interest

rate

100,489

13,498

- 18,773
99

4,189

Total assets 118,275 18,773 5,065 34,248 100,780 45,886 323,027 204,537

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and
deposits from
customers
Borrowings
Provisions for
liabilities and charges
Other liabilities
Registered capitaland
reserves
Total liabilities and
equity

122,519
521 21; 21; 4s; 

1o'ooo tt?:333

1,130
18,711

169,272

10,000
874

1.00o/o

2.00o/o

1,130
18,711

169,272

312,153 218 219 437 10,000 323,027 10,874

lnterest rate risk - 18,773 4,847 3+029 100,343 35,886 193,663
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25. FTNANCTAL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.2. lnterest rate risk (continued)

As at
31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Obligatory reserve with
the Central Bank
Loans and receivables
from clients
Other assets
Property, equipment
and intangible assets

Non-interest
bearing ,hii",, 1-.s smonths

montns to 1 year
montn

Total

107,731

13,496

6,354 30,e33 114,703_ 34,483_ 
"X,,133

4,497

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Fixed
interest

rate

Effective
interest

rate

107,731

13,496

- 11,653
1,198

4,487

197,884 3.87o/o

Total assets 126,912 1f,653 6,354 30,933 114,703 34,483 325,038 1g7,gg4

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and
deposits from
customers
Borrowings
Provisions for
liabilities and charges
Other liabilities
Registered capital and
reserves
Total liabilities and
equity

132,116
585

3,1'15
9,029

168,912

21; 21; 8s; 
1o'ooo 

'01',ll1

3,1 15
9,029

168,912

10,000
1,281

1.000/o

2.00o/o

313,757 213 214 854 10,000 325,038 11,281

lnterest rate risk 11,653 6,141 30,719 113,849 24,483 186,603
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25. FtNANCTAL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.4. The estimation of fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,

willing parties in an arm's length conditions. Where available, fair values are based on market prices. However,

for a significant part of the Bank's financial instruments, there are no readily available market prices. ln

conditions when market prices are not readily available, fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or

other appropriate techniques pricing. Changes in the accompanying assumptions, including discount rates and

estimated future cash flows, significantly affect the estimates. Therefore, the calculated fair market estimates

may not be realized in the sale of financial instruments in the current period, particularly taking into account the

impact of the global financial crisis and the lack of a liquid market in Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying values of cash and balances with banks are generally deemed to approximate their fair values

Loans to clients

Given the specificity of the Bank, a large amount of the total loan portfolio carries a fixed interest rate and long-

term maturity and an interest rate below the market of the interest rate, which reflect the development

component of the Bank. Since the bank has no commercial orientation nor set goals that are a rarity for other

market participants, it is not practicable to calculate the fair value of loans to customers, nor would the

information have particular added value, taking into account the above stated specificities.

Depos/ts from clients

For demand deposits and deposits with no defined maturities, fair value is the amount payable on demand at

the statement of financial position date. The estimated fair value of fixed-maturity deposits is based on

discounted cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. lt is not

practicable to calculate the fair value of fixed-maturity deposits.

Borrowings

Bank borrowings are interest-free or carry a low fixed interest rate. The fair value of borrowings with fixed

interest rate is determined using a discounted future cash flows using interest rates currently offered for loans

with similar terms and conditions to borrowers with similar credit worthiness. lt is not practicable to calculate

the fair value of borrowings.

25.5. Capital management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept of "share capital" of the statement

of financial position, are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking market in the domestic

environment;
. To maintain a strong capital base to support business development.

The Bank's Management regularly monitors capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital on the basis of

appropriate techniques that are based on the regulations of the Banking Agency of the Federation of Bosnia

and Herzegovina.
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25. FTNANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.5. Gapital management(continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank was in line with all regulatory capital requirements and in accordance with

local regulations achieved a capital adequacy ratio of 85.0% (31 December 2018: 91.4o/o).

The Bank's regulatory capital for monitoring adequacy according to the Agency's methodology consists of:

o Core Capital: share capital (net of the carrying value of treasury shares), share premium, retained

earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained earnings; negative revaluation reserves

arising from the revaluation of the fair value of assets;

. Supplementary Capital: general reserves to cover loan losses.

Risk-weighted assets are measured by means of hierarchy of four weights classified according to the nature of

the assets and reflecting an estimate of associated credit, market and other risks, taking into consideration all

eligible collateral or guarantees. Similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposures, with certain

adjustments made in order reflect the volatility of potential losses.

The table below shows the structure of regulatory capital and capital adequacy indicators at 31 December 2019

and 31 December 2018, in accordance with local regulations (information on risk weighted assets is not

audited), taken from the accounts submitted to the Agency for the periods then ended:

Core Capital

Share capital
Reserves
lntangible assets
Uncovered loss - IFRS 9

Totalcore capital

Supplementary Gapital
General reserves - Agency regulations
Audited profit for the year

Total supplementary capital

Adjustment for missing regulatory reserves

Net Capital

Risk weighted assets (unaudited) *

Other weighted assets (unaudited) *

2019
KM'000

163,615
5,298

(84)

20'18
KM'000

163,61 5
1,587
(168)

(7,63e)

{68.829 157,395

2,231 1,940

2.231 1,940

(19,339) (2,33e)

151,721

165,246
'l 3,195

178,441

156,996

'156,436

14 494

Total weighted risk assets 170,929

Gapital adequacy ratio (%) 85.0% 91.8o/o

* The risk weighted asset amounts in the table above were calculated in accordance with FBA regulations
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25. FTNANCTAL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.5. Capital management (continued)

ln accordance with the regulations of the Agency, the Decision on calculation of bank capital ("Official Gazette

of Federation of BiH" No. 81/17), audited profit for the period are included in the calculation of regulatory capital

as of the day when the audited financial statements are issued and approved by the management bodies of

the Bank. ln accordance with regulatory requirements in force at the date of the report of 31 December 2019,

profit for the period would be included in the calculation of regulatory capital if the audited financial statements

were approved and adopted by the Assembly of the Bank prior to submission of the report to the Banking

Agency. ln the above calculation, profit for 2019 was not included in the calculation of capital adequacy as at

31 December 2019, since it was not audited nor adopted by the management bodies of the Bank.

26.POST REPORTING DATE EVENTS

The spread of the corona virus (COVID-1 9) will affect the Bank's operations in the upcoming period. lt is still
not possible to assess the impact of the spread of the corona virus and its consequences on the financial
position and operations of the Bank

ln addition to the above, there were no events requiring reconciliation between 31 December 2019 and the date
of issue of these financial statements.

27. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Management Board on 09 April 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Management Board

Dr.sc. Semir Fejzie
Acting President of the Management Board


